
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Monday, December 15, 2014 

3:30 p.m.  Tour 
4:00 p.m.  Open Session 

 
City Hall Council Chambers 

East side of Monte Verde Street 
Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR  
      GREGORY CARPER 
      ELINOR LAIOLO  
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI 
      JULIE WENDT 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 3:30 p.m., the Board will leave the Council Chambers for an on-site Tour of Inspection 
as noted on “applications” section of the agenda.  The public is welcome to follow the Historic 
Resource Board on its tour of the subject sites.  The Board will return to Council Chambers at 4:00 
p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible.  
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do so now.  
Please state the matter on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the Board’s agenda 
will not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future meeting.  
Presentations will be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board.  Persons are not 
required to give their name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state their name in order that 
the Secretary may identify them. 
  
E.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consideration of the minutes of October 20, 2014 Historic Resources Board Meeting 
 
 
 
 

1



F.  APPLICATIONS  
 

1.  DR 14-35 (Hirst) 
Mike Hirst 
NW corner of Ocean and San Carlos 
Block: 71, Lot: 2 
APN: 010-134-011 

 

 Consideration of a Design Review (DR 14-35) 
for alterations to a historic building located in 
the Central Commercial (CC) Zoning District  

   
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Update from the Director 
2. Goals and Departmental Work-Plan for 2015  

 
H. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 
 

1. Report on Sub-Committees 
 
I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  
 
K.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board regarding any 
item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning and Building 
Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean and 7th Avenues during normal 
business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board is scheduled for Monday, January 19, 
2015.    

3:30 p.m. – Tour of Inspection 
4:00 p.m. – Regular Agenda 

 
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  The City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired (TDD) number is 1-
800-735-2929 
 
The City Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to come to 
the podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board Secretary.  If you 
need assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you would like to comment on, and 
the microphone will be brought to you. 

2



 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Robert A. Mullane, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of Carmel-by-
the-Sea, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, 
that the foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin board, posted at 
the Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln Avenues and the Carmel Post Office and 
distributed to members of the media on December 12, 2014. 
 
Dated this 12th, day of December 2014 at the hour of 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Robert A. Mullane, AICP 
Community Planning and Building Director 

      
 
 

3



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

October 20, 2014  
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at  4:00 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Gregory Carper 
Elinor Laiolo 
Kathryn Gualtieri 
 

 ABSENT:  Julie Wendt 
  

 STAFF PRESENT: Rob Mullane, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 
Lori Frontella, Acting Deputy City Clerk 

 
B. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 

The Board left to tour the following project site:  MA 14-01 (Whittington), SW corner of 
Ocean and Forest Avenue Carmelo.   

The Board returned to City Hall to begin the regular meeting at 4:00 p.m.  Chair Dyar 
reconvened the meeting and called for all roll call.  Board Members Dyar, Carper, Laiolo, 
and Gualtieri were noted as present; Board Member Wendt was noted as absent. 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D. APPEARANCES 
 
 There were no appearances. 
 
E. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consideration of the minutes of May 19, 2014 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 

4



 
Chair Dyar noted a typo on page three of the draft minutes.  Mr. Mullane noted that he 
would amend the minutes accordingly. 

Board Member Carper moved to approve the draft minutes from the May 19, 2014 
Historic Resources Board Meeting.  Motion seconded by Commissioner Laiolo and 
carried by the following roll call vote: 

 

AYES: COMMISSIONERS: CARPER, LAIOLO, & DYAR    
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT  
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI 
 

 
F. APPLICATIONS 
 

1.  MA 14-01 (Whittington) 
Charles Whittington 
SW corner of Ocean and Forest Avenue 
Block: 83, Lot: 1 APN: 010-041-001 

 

 Consideration of a recommendation to the 
City Council to adopt a Mills Act (MA 14-01) 
Contract for an existing historic residence 
located in the Single Family Residential (R-1) 
Zoning District and a request to place the 
residence on the Carmel Register of Historic 
Resources   

Marc Wiener, Senior Planner, presented the staff report and summarized the project.   
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Kent Seavey, Historic Preservation Consultant, summarized his review of the 
subject building.  He noted that it is a California ranch with its original use a studio, and 
that it was the first modern building to be listed in the City’s inventory.  He noted his 
support for the inclusion of this property in the Register and the approval of the Mill’s 
Act contract. 
 
Speaker #2: Charles Whittington, owner, spoke on the porch and the reasons for the 
repair.  Mr. Whittington stated that he plans on keeping the house in good shape and 
not making alterations to its historically-significant components. 
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 
 

5



Chair Dyar asked that Staff more closely monitor proposed repairs done to Historic 
Properties to make sure they are adhering to the scope of work set forth in the contract. 
 
Mr. Mullane noted a minor correction was needed to the stated property location in the 
contract. 
 
Carper noted several recommended alterations to the contract, and distributed a 
handout with these revisions indicated.  
 
Chair Dyar reopened the public hearing 
 
Speaker #2: Charles  Whittington, home owner, spoke on the existing fence. 
 
The Chair asked the applicant if he had any issues with the contract and was told that if 
so he can bring them up when the item goes to City Council. 
 
Seeing no more speakers, Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 
 
Chair Dyar asked about the vinyl solarium bay component and asked if the applicant 
would be willing to include restoration of this component as part of the list of 
maintenance projects for the house. 
 
Chair Dyar reopened the public hearing.  
 
Speaker #2: Mr. Whittington stated that he was willing to put something more 
complimentary into the maintenance plan. 
 
Speaker #3: Stephanie Kirz, resident, stated her support for the project. 
 
Seeing no more speakers, Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 

 
Commissioner Carper moved to add the property in question to the Historic Register 
and approve the Mills Act agreement as amended by the Board and for the bay 
window in the kitchen be replaced by some fashion to be more consistent with the 
historic nature of the property and staff being further directed to complete onsite 
inspections of exterior work. Motion seconded my Commissioner Gualtieri and carried 
by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: COMMISSIONERS: CARPER, LAIOLO, GUALTIERI, & DYAR   
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT   
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

6



G.  SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 

1. Establishment of a joint subcommittee to consider a historic survey of Mid-Century 
Modern buildings in the City  

 
Mr. Mullane provided some information on the background for the formation of this 
sub-committee, which would also involve two members of the Planning Commission.  
 

Commissioner Carper moved to establish a joint Sub-Committee to consider mid-
century modern buildings in the City for possible recognition and inclusion to Historic 
Inventory with the nomination of Chair Dyar and Commissioner Gualtieri to this sub-
committee.  Motion seconded by Commissioner Laiolo and carried by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: COMMISSIONERS: CARPER, LAIOLO, GUALTIERI, & DYAR   
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT   
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
   

2. Historic Home of the Month Committee 
 

Chair Dyar gave a report on the sub-committee’s progress.  The Harmony House and the 
Bark House were identified as future candidates for articles.  

 
H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

No items. 
 
I.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

No discussion. 
 
J.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

Mr. Mullane announced that Board Member Carper was re-appointed to the HRB by the 
City Council.  Mr. Mullane also announced that a City Council work-study session on the 
Forest Theater repairs project was scheduled for tomorrow at 4:00 pm, and that the 
Halloween Parade was scheduled for Saturday, October 25th.  He also updated the Board 
on recent staff activities and staff recruitments.  

 
  

7



K. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 5:14 p.m. 
 
 

 SIGNED:  
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
 __________________________________ 
 Rob Mullane, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director  
 
 

8



9



10



11



12



13

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A - DPR 523



14



15



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

16

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Secretary Standards



17



18



19



20



21



22

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D - Project Plans

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Alternative 1 - Awning Proposal

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text



23

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Alternative 2 - Wood Paneling Proposal



24



6'-8

3

4

" 6'-8

3

4

"

5'-10" 5'-10" 5'-10"

1
'
-
4

"

1
'
-
0

"

1
'
-
0

"

1
'
-
2

"

1
'
-
2

"

9"

1
'
-
2

"

9"

1
'
-
4

"

9"

1
'
-
2

"

9"

1
'
-
0

"

9"

1
'
-
0

"

Scale: 3/4" = 1'

SIDE PLANTER 1 ELEVATIONS

1

Scale: 3/4" = 1'

FRONT LEFT PLANTER ELEVATIONS

1

Scale: 3/4" = 1'

FRONT RIGHT PLANTER ELEVATIONS

1

Scale: 3/4" = 1'

SIDE PLANTER 2 ELEVATIONS

1

Scale: 3/4" = 1'

SIDE PLANTER 3 ELEVATIONS

1




































































































































































































































































































*







































































































































































25



26



27



Attachment A

28



Attachment B

29



Summary of Work Study 

December 1, 2014 

Council Goals 2015 

 

Goal Description Votes Placement 
Day-to-Day Operations (personnel) 11 1st  
Beautification 11 1st  
Shoreline Management/Forest Plan 10 2nd 
Trails – Pedestrian safety, Rio Park, 
Scenic Path 

10 2nd 

IT Plan 7 3rd  
Forest theater Plan 6 4th  
Sunset Center – theater district 
Campus Plan 

6 4th  

Parking Management 5 5th  
Emergency Plan 4 6th  
100th Anniversary Planning 4 6th  
Community Outreach –
communications 

1 7th  

CIP 1 7th  
Commercial Zoning & Guidelines 1 7th  
Water 0  
PG&E 0  
Flanders 0  
New Projects 0  
Volunteerism 0  
Facilities Use Plan 0  

 

30



CARMEL COMMUNITY PLANNING & BUILDING DEPARTMNET 
DEPARTMENTAL WORK-PLAN 

As Revised by the Planning Commission on 12/10/14 and by Staff on 12/11/14  
 
2014 Achievements  
 

1. Departmental Operations 

• Operational Assessment and Improvements 
• Staffing the Department and Training – currently 7.0 FTE 
• File Documentation - Interim Permit Tracking System and Digital Records 
• File Storage (Office Remodel) 
• Additional Work Spaces 
• Review/Simplification of Permit Application Forms 
• New Checklists for Clearer Forms 
• More Detailed Review of Planning and Building projects – more certainty, 

less neighbor disputes 
• Improved PC and HRB Agenda Packets 
• Review of Permit Fees (CPI Adjustment July 2014, Major Revision 

Deferred) 
• Improved Tracking and Follow-up for Code Compliance Issues 

 
2. Current Planning and Building Project Activity (Jan. – Nov. 2014) 

 
• Approximately 400 Planning Permits 
• Approx. 350 Building Permits 
• Approx. 150 Plan Revisions 
• Approx. 120 Encroachment Permits  
• Approx. 400 Code Compliance Cases 
• Several Key Municipal Projects (Scenic Restroom, Forest Theater, Scout 

House, ASBS Work, Beach Signage, Piccadilly Park, etc.) 
 

3. Long-Range Planning Projects and Initiatives 
 

• Assisted in the review of progress on Shoreline Management Plan and 
Forest Management Plan 

• Revision of Wine Tasting Room Policy (in progress) 
• Median Lighting Subcommittee (in progress) 
• Rio Park Trail (Rio Road to Lasuen Drive connector; in progress – outside 

consultant) 
• Historic Home of the Month Sub-Committee - established 

 
  

31



2015 Work-Plan – Long-Range Planning 
 
Operational Items 
 

1. Obtain and Incorporate Permit Tracking System 
2. Recruit and Train Assistant/Associate Planner 
3. Continue to update/simplify permit application forms 
4. Update Planning and Building Fees 

 
Current Planning and Building Projects 
 

1. Handle case load and adjust staffing as necessary 
2. Shorten Turn-around times (Planning, Building, and Encroachment Permits) 
3. Forest Theater Building Plan Review 
4. Wildcards (Eastwood/Odello Water Petition, Carmel Resort Inn, CIP support, 

etc.) 
 
Long-Range Planning Projects 
 

Highest Priorities - next 6 months 
 

1. Initiate Housing Element update - retain consultant and commence work on 
draft HE update 

2. Wine Tasting Room Subcommittee 
3. Median Lighting Subcommittee 
4. Mid-Century Houses Subcommittee 
5. Rio Park Trail Permitting 
6. Roofing Subcommittee Work 
7. Historic Home of the Month Work 

 
Next Highest Priorities - next 6 to 18 month time-frame 

 
1. Housing Element Update 
2. Roofing Subcommittee Work 
3. Restaurant Definitions Zoning Code Amendment 
4. North Dunes Restoration CDP – Assist Dept. of Public Services 
5. Beach Signs Program – support consultant 
6. Assist Library and Community Services with Special Events Permits and 

Commercial Activity on the Beach 
7. North Dunes Subcommittee Work 
8. Forest Theater Landmark Designation 

 
Longer Term Priorities - >18 months out 

 

32



1. Short Term Rentals – Possible Municipal Code Change 
2. Signage Subcommittee Work 
3. North Dunes Subcommittee Work 
4. Awning Subcommittee Work 
5. Revise Single-Use Plastic Carryout Bag Ban – Add per-bag fee 
6. Review of Lighting Regulations and Compliance 
7. Zoning Ordinance Clean-up and Update 
8. Zoning Ordinance Review 
9. Review and Update of the Commercial Design Guidelines 
10. Review and Update of the Residential Design Guidelines 
11. Review and Update of the Public ROW Design Guidelines 
12. Sunset Center and Theater Districts to Downtown Corridor - retain design 

consultant 
13. Shoreline Management - Provide assistance for annual shoreline assessments 

and maintenance projects 
14. Shoreline Management – Provide assistance with establishing a beach volume 

monitoring program 
15. Participate in MPWMD technical advisory group and provide support for regional 

water conservation and supply efforts (may get moved up) 
16. Establishment of a Historic District  
17. Flanders Mansion - Process Flanders Lot Line Adjustment 
18. Rio Park Redesign 
19. Other Trail Connections 
 

 

33


	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.   CONSENT AGENDA
	J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS
	K.  ADJOURNMENT


	Item E1 - draft HRB Minutes 102014.pdf
	I.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS
	J.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT




